
City of Kelowna
Regular Council Meeting

AGENDA

 
Monday, May 11, 2015

1:30 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

This meeting is open to the public and all representations to Council form part of the
public record.  A live audio feed is being broadcast and recorded by CastaNet and a
delayed broadcast is shown on Shaw Cable.

2. Confirmation of Minutes 4 - 10

Regular PM Meeting - May 4, 2015

3. Public in Attendance

3.1 Alternator Centre for Contemporary Art 11 - 29

Annual presentation to Council by Gallery Manager, Peter Green.

4. Committee Reports

4.1 Financial Statements for the Year Ending December 31, 2014 30 - 59

To present the Financial Statements to Council for acceptance per the
legislative requirement, to provide Council with a recommendation on the
appropriation of $2,900,000 of surplus to general reserves and to seek approval
to include the Financial Statements in the annual report.

5. Development Application Reports & Related Bylaws

5.1 1432 McInnes Avenue, Z15-0014 - Caroline Kaltenhauser 60 - 75

To rezone the subject parcel from RU6 - Two Dwelling Housing zone to RM1 -
Four Dewelling Housing zone.

5.2 1432 McInnes Avenue, BL11094 (Z15-0014) - Caroline Kaltenhauser 76 - 76

To give Bylaw No. 11094 first reading in order to rezone the subject property.
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5.3 1280 Highway 33 East, Z15-0011 - Imre & Jennifer Csorba 77 - 89

To rezone the subject property from A1 - Agriculture 1 zone to A1c -
Agriculture 1 with Carriage House zone.

5.4 1280 Highway 33 East, BL11095 (Z15-0011) - Imre & Jennifer Csorba 90 - 90

To give Bylaw No. 11095 first reading in order to rezone the subject property.

5.5 Memorial Parkade – Parkade Naming and Budget Update 91 - 108

To seek Council endorsement to formalize the name of the new parkade
facility to be constructed on Ellis Street. To provide Council an update on the
financial status of the Memorial Parkade project and to seek Council
endorsement to increase the budget.

5.6 1435 Water Street (Ells Street Parkade), DP14-0256 - City of Kelowna 109 - 137

To consider a Development Permit regarding the form and character of the
proposed Ellis Street Parkade.

6. Bylaws for Adoption (Development Related)

6.1 103 Clifton Road North, 145 Clifton Road, 185 Clifton Road North and (E of)
Upper Canyon Drive, BL10929 (OCP14-0003) - Glenwest Properties Ltd.

138 - 140

Requires a majority of all members of Council (5).
To adopt Bylaw No. 10929 in order to change the future land use designations
of the subject properties.

6.2 103 Clifton Road North, 145 Clifton Road, 185 Clifton Road North and (E of)
Upper Canyon Drive, BL10931 (Z14-0004) - Glenwest Properties Ltd.

141 - 143

To adopt Bylaw No. 10931 in order to rezone portions of the subject
properties.

7. Non-Development Reports & Related Bylaws

7.1 561 McKay Avenue and 2600 Richter Street, Adjacent to, Partial Road Closure 144 - 147

To close a portion of dedicated roadway currently being used as a surface
parking lot.

7.2 Osprey Avenue (portion of), Adjacent to 561 McKay Avenue and 2600 Richter
Street, BL11089 - Road Closure Bylaw

148 - 149

To give Bylaw No. 11089 first, second and third readings in order to close a
portionof dedicated roadway currently being used as a surface parking lot.
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8. Bylaws for Adoption (Non-Development Related)

8.1 BL11084 - Annual Tax Rates Bylaw, 2015 150 - 152

To adopt the Annual Tax Rates Bylaw, 2015 No. 11084.

8.2 BL11085 - Development Cost Charge Reserve Fund Expenditure Byalw, 2015 153 - 153

To adopt the Development Cost Charge Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw, 2015,
No. 11085.

8.3 BL11086 - Sale of City-Owned Land Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw, 2015 154 - 154

To adopt the Sale of City-Owned Land Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw, 2015
No. 11086.

8.4 BL11087, Tax Structure Bylaw, 2015 155 - 155

To adopt the Tax Structure Bylaw, 2015 No. 11087.

8.5 BL11088 - Five Year Financial Plan 2015-2019 156 - 160

To adopt the Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw, 2015-2019, No. 11088.

9. Mayor and Councillor Items

10. Termination
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Organization Summary 
• Artist-run centre 
• Founded in 1989 
• Located in the Rotary 

Centre for the Arts 
• Largest artist-run centre 

between Vancouver and 
Calgary 
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Our Mandate 
① Support emerging and alternative artists 

• Through mentorship, studio space, workshops, exhibition opportunities, 
professional development, etc. 

② Present exhibitions and projects that are engaged in 
social issues, experimental and collaborative 
• Art that challenges dominant structures of identity and dominant value 

systems 

③ Inspire our members and the community 
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Artist-Run Centres in Canada 

① What are they? 
• Artist initiated and managed 

organizations 
• Follow the not-for-profit model 
• Do not charge admission fees 
• De-emphasize the selling of work 

② What is their role in society? 
• To act as arts incubators 
• Work towards the benefit of the 

practicing artist within a context 
of self-determination 
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Visitor Statistics 
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• 48% ages 19-34 
• 20% ages 35-49 
• 29% ages 50+ 

• 70% from Kelowna 
• 87% from the Okanagan 
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Membership Statistics 
• Strong majority of 

members are young 
artists ages 19-35 
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Volunteers 
• 1 full-time staff 
• 2 part-time staff 
• 1 full-time summer student 
• 2 part-time practicum students 

 
• Annual payroll: $70,330 

Staff 
• 45 active volunteers 
• 733 hours annually 

 
 
 

• Value: $15,325 

17



Operating Budget 
• Total 2015 Operating Budget: $130,398 

• 19% of total revenues from City of Kelowna 
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Operating Budget 
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Accomplishments 
① Diversified earned revenues 

• Sponsorships through Benjamin Moore Kelowna and SignCraft 
• Red Dot Members’ Exhibition and Sale 
• Drafted three year strategic plan for new fundraising initiatives 

② Popularity and new growth of Members’ Gallery 
③ Facilitated connection between creative and business 

sectors 
• Business Branding Raffle 
• Increased community recognition 
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Impact in the Community 
① We act as an arts incubator in Kelowna, helping the 

promotion of amateur artists to professional status. 

In 2012, Jordan Bennett (now a 
UBCO MFA student) had his first 
paid professional exhibition at the 
Alternator.  His exhibit aboDIGITAL 
examined the interface of audio-
visual technologies and the Internet 
with his First Nations heritage. 

Recent Success: 

Photo by CanadianArt.ca 
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Impact in the Community 
② We integrate young artists in the Kelowna community, 

and help retain professionals in the region. 
“[The Alternator] has added an incentive for 
young artists to stay in the region and has 
made it much easier for artists who have lived or 
studied elsewhere and are new to town to 
become part of the community.” 

Fern Helfand 
Associate Professor, Creative Studies 
University of British Columbia 
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Impact in the Community 
③ A unique pillar of Kelowna’s arts community, the 

Alternator shows types of socially engaged work 
otherwise absent at other institutions. 

“[The Alternator] encourages local artists to create 
and exhibit by providing them with peer inspiration 
and a safe environment in which to display work 
that may not be a ‘fit’ for traditional galleries.” 

Patrick LeBlanc 
General Manager 
Rotary Centre for the Arts 
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Impact in the Community 
④ We contribute to the vibrancy of Kelowna through 

incubating public art. 
Local artist Chrystal Przybille of our 
artist co-op program is currently 
developing a major public sculpture of 
Chief Swkn’cut in our Studio 111. 

Photo by Shelly Wood, 
Okanagan Art Review  24



Impact in the Community 
⑤ We diversify Kelowna’s arts audience. 

• Our audience is strongly made up of young adults 
ages 19-34 (48%), an anomaly in the Okanagan and 
a priority in City of Kelowna’s Cultural Plan 

2012-2017 City of Kelowna Cultural Plan  
“The interests, needs and behaviours of young adults, who tend to have less disposable 
income, are different and are at risk of being swept aside by an aging demographic wave.” 

 
“Cultural growth should be organic, not just the result of City programming. More structure 
does not always equal more creative success.” 

“[The RCA] benefits 
from the younger 

audience demographic 
that the Alternator 

attracts.” 

Patrick LeBlanc 
General Manager 

Rotary Centre for the Arts 
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Impact in the Community 
⑤ We diversify Kelowna’s arts audience. 

• Our audience is strongly made up of young adults ages 
19-34 (48%), an anomaly in the Okanagan and a priority 
in City of Kelowna’s Cultural Plan 

• Our audience is strongly made up of 
artists (62%), again an anomaly in 
the Okanagan. 

• We develop partnerships with groups 
outside of the arts (e.g. tech) 

• We develop partnerships with grass-
roots organizations 

“[The RCA] benefits 
from the younger 

audience demographic 
that the Alternator 

attracts.” 

Patrick LeBlanc 
General Manager 

Rotary Centre for the Arts 
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Recent Collaborations 

My Studio 
Kelowna 
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Planning 
① Growth & continued diversification of earned revenue 

• Airline Raffle, Expansion of Members’ Show/Sale, Donor Drive, 
Facebook Fundraiser 

② Expansion of growing Members’ Gallery program 
• To assist local artists to move from amateur to professional status 

③ Establish new and enhanced plan for orientation and 
training of new board members 
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Thank You 
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2014 Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2014
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Independent auditors’ report 

To the members of Council of the City of Kelowna 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the City of Kelowna (the 
“City”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2014, and 
the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus, consolidated statement of changes 
in net financial assets and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.  
 

Management’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

Auditors’ responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the City of Kelowna as at December 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards. 
 
 

Kelowna, Canada 

April 28, 2015 Chartered accountants 
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CITY OF KELOWNA
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

2014 2013

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 85,369          $ 67,842          

Accounts receivable (Note 3) 33,917          32,309          

Accrued interest 591               952               

Portfolio investments (Note 3) 222,335        217,538        

Long term investments (Note 10) 6,000            6,000            

Property held for resale 220               449               

348,432        325,090        

Liabilities

Accounts payable 39,333          40,753          

Performance deposits 8,422            7,798            

Deferred revenue (Note 3) 37,017          35,906          

Deferred development cost charges (Note 3) 18,149          24,018          

Long term debt  (Note 3) 105,611        120,241        

208,532        228,716        

Net Financial Assets 139,900 96,374

Non-Financial Assets

Prepaid expenses 2,465            1,482            

Inventory 1,147            999               

Work in progress (Note 4) 60,060          59,477          

Tangible capital assets (Note 4) 1,566,200     1,563,290     

1,629,872     1,625,248     

Accumulated Surplus (Note 5) $ 1,769,772     $ 1,721,622     

Contingent liabilities and Commitments (Notes 8 and 9)

Genelle Davidson, CPA, CMA Colin Basran

Financial Services Director Mayor, City of Kelowna

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF KELOWNA
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

Budget Actual Actual

2014 2014 2013

Revenue

Taxation (Note 6) $ 119,062        $ 119,266        $ 114,844        

Fees and charges 98,421          117,950        111,870        

Interest earned 5,408            8,438            6,818            

DCC contributions 11,419          18,000          11,520          

Government transfers (Note 7) 32,592          22,387          20,243          

Other capital contributions 325               4,082            3,759            

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets -                    4,455            23,281          

267,227        294,578        292,335        

Expenses

General government services 22,777          18,481          15,107          

Protective services 49,887          48,866          48,962          

Transportation services 32,576          32,119          30,568          

Recreational and cultural services 33,427          33,807          31,214          

Other services 17,343          16,238          17,432          

Airport operations 10,837          11,131          10,672          

Electrical utility -                    -                    8,030            

Wastewater utility 10,465          9,494            9,483            

Water utility 5,769            5,134            4,769            

Amortization of tangible capital assets -                    61,411          60,092          

Debt charges 10,326          9,747            9,865            

193,407        246,428        246,194        

Annual Surplus $ 73,820          48,150          46,141          

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year 1,721,622     1,675,481     

Accumulated Surplus, end of year $ 1,769,772     $ 1,721,622     

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF KELOWNA
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
(in thousands of dollars)

Budget Actual Actual

2014 2014 2013

Annual Surplus $ 73,820       $ 48,150 $ 46,141            

Amortization of tangible capital assets -                 61,411 60,092            

Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets -                 8,274 61,009            

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets -                 (4,455) (23,281)

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (182,854) (68,723) (49,270)

Change in inventory and prepaid expenses -                 (1,131) 292

Increase (decrease) in Net Financial Assets (109,034) 43,526 94,983

Net Financial Assets, beginning of year 96,374 96,374 1,391

Net Financial Assets (Debt), end of year $ (12,660) $ 139,900 $ 96,374

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF KELOWNA

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Actual Actual

2014 2013

Net inflow (outflow) of cash and cash equivalents related to the following activities

Operating

Annual Surplus $ 48,150 $ 46,141

Adjustment for non-cash items

Amortization of tangible capital assets 61,411 60,092

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets (4,455) (23,281)

Other capital contributions (4,082) (3,759)

Developer contributions of tangible capital assets (8,344) (2,388)

Decrease (increase) in 

Accounts receivable (1,608) (2,321)

Inventory and prepaid expenses (1,131) 292

Other assets 361 (465)

Increase (decrease) in 

Accounts payable (1,420) (1,448)

Deferred development cost charges (5,869) (2,614)

Other liabilities 1,735 685

84,748 70,934

Capital

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (60,150) (46,742)

Proceeds from disposal of tangible capital assets 8,274 61,009            

(51,876) 14,267

Investing

Change in investments (4,797) (35,015)

Financing

Proceeds from issuance of long term debt 345 -                  

Repayment of long term debt (10,893) (10,913)

(10,548) (10,913)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 17,527 39,273

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 67,842 28,569

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 85,369 $ 67,842

Supplemental cash flow information

Interest paid $ 9,747 $ 9,865

Non-cash capital activities

Acquisition of tangible capital assets through developer contributions $ 8,344 $ 2,388

Property held for resale transferred (to) from tangible capital assets $ (81) $ 449                 

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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CITY OF KELOWNA 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
(all tabular amounts reported in 000’s of dollars) 

 

7 

 

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of the statements.  They explain the significant accounting 

and reporting policies and principles underlying these statements.  They also provide relevant supplementary information and 

explanations which cannot be conveniently expressed in the consolidated financial statements. 

 

The consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of and prepared by management in accordance with Canadian public 

sector accounting standards (PSAS). The preparation of these consolidated financial statements necessarily involves the use of 

estimates based on management’s judgment, particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannot be 

finalized with certainty until future periods. 

 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

 

 Basis of presentation 
 

The City of Kelowna's resources and operations are segregated into General, Airport, Wastewater Utility, Water Utility, 

Natural Gas Legacy, Development Cost Charges and Statutory Reserve Funds for accounting and financial reporting 

purposes.  The consolidated financial statements include all the accounts of these funds. All material interfund transactions 

and balances have been eliminated within the consolidated financial statements. 

 

 The City of Kelowna Library Society is controlled by the City of Kelowna through its appointment of the members of the 

society. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements include all the accounts of the society. 

 

 Accrual accounting 

 

 The accrual method for reporting revenues and expenses has been used. 

 

Inventory 
 

 Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, determined principally on a weighted average and specific item basis, or 

replacement cost.  

 

Work in progress 
 

 Work in progress represents capital projects under construction but not yet completed and are valued at cost. 

 

Tangible capital assets  
 

 The City records tangible capital assets including assets held as work in progress or capital lease at cost, in the period they 

were acquired or when the asset is put into use.  

 

All tangible capital assets are valued at cost which includes all costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction, 

development or betterment of the tangible capital asset.   

 

Assets owned by the City but not paid for by the City including contributions, dedications, gifts and donations, are valued 

at fair value at the date of contribution, dedication, gift or donation, where fair value is reasonably determinable. 

 

Amortization 
 

The cost less residual value of the tangible capital assets is amortized on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the 

asset as follows:   
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CITY OF KELOWNA 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
(all tabular amounts reported in 000’s of dollars) 
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Asset Type Useful 

Life

Years

Asset Type

Useful Life

Years

Parks infrastructure Vehicles

Playground equipment  15 - 20 Cars and light trucks   5 - 10

Artificial turf field  10 - 12 Fire trucks  15 - 20

Washrooms, concessions, picnic shelters  40 - 50 IT infrastructure

Outdoor pools, spray pools  50 - 60 Hardware   4 - 5

Building structure  40 - 75 Software   5 - 10

Building improvements Telephone system   7 - 10

Exterior envelope  30 - 40 Infrastructue

HVAC systems  10 - 12 (dependent upon component and material)

Roofs  15 - 20 Electrical  20 - 25

Electrical, plumbing and fire  15 - 20 Water  10 - 100

Site works - asphalt, water and sewer lines, etc  10 - 100 Wastewater  10 - 100

Machinery & equipment Drainage  10 - 100

General equipment   7 - 10 Transporation  10 - 100

Grounds equipment and machinery  10 - 15

Heavy construction equipment   5 - 10  
 

One half of the annual amortization is charged in the year of acquisition and in the year of disposal. 

Land and Work in Progress are not amortized. 

 

Contributions of Tangible Capital Assets 

 
Tangible capital assets received as contributions are recorded at their fair market value.   

 

Intangible Assets 

 
Intangible assets include works of art and historic assets located throughout the City. They are not reflected in these 

consolidated financial statements. 

 
Interest Capitalization 

 

The City of Kelowna only capitalizes interest on projects being financed internally which will require debenture borrowing 

upon completion.  Interest is calculated on monthly expenditures at the bank prime rate less 2%.   

 

Municipal Finance Authority cash deposits and demand notes 
 

 The City issues the majority of its debt instruments through the Municipal Finance Authority. As a condition of these 

borrowings, a portion of the debenture proceeds is withheld by the Municipal Finance Authority as a debt reserve fund. 

The City also executes demand notes in connection with each debenture whereby the City may be required to loan certain 

amounts to the Municipal Finance Authority. These demand notes are contingent in nature.  The Debt Reserve and Demand 

Note balances are as follows: 

2014 2013

Cash Deposits held by MFA $         2,642 $         2,714 

Demand Notes held by MFA         7,576         7,922 

$       10,218 $       10,636 
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CITY OF KELOWNA 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
(all tabular amounts reported in 000’s of dollars) 
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Reserves for future expenditures 
 

 Reserves for future expenditures are non-statutory reserves which represent an appropriation of surplus for specific 

purposes. Transfers to reserves for future expenditures include funds to finance incomplete projects and accumulations for 

specific purposes. 

 

Statutory reserve funds  
 

 The use of these funds is restricted by the Community Charter and associated Municipal Bylaws.  Statutory reserve funds 

are funded 100% by cash and portfolio investments. 

 

 Revenue recognition 

 

Taxation revenue 
 

Annual levies for non-optional municipal services and general administrative services are recorded as taxes for municipal 

purposes. Levies imposed by other taxing authorities are not included as taxes for municipal purposes. Taxes are 

recognized as revenue in the year they are levied.  

 

Through the BC Assessment appeal process taxes may be adjusted by way of supplementary roll adjustments. The affects 

of these adjustments on taxes are recognized at the time they are awarded. 

 

Fees and charges revenue 
 

Charges for transportation, environmental health, building permits, electrical, water, wastewater, natural gas and airport are 

included in this category. These revenues are recorded on the accrual basis and recognized as earned which is usually when 

services are provided or facilities are utilized. 

 

DCC contributions 
 

DCCs are recognized as revenue during the period in which the related costs are incurred.   

 

Government transfers 
 

Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the period that the transfer is authorized, eligibility criteria, if any, have 

been met by the City, and a reasonable estimate of the amount to be received can be made. 

 

Investment income 
 

The City’s investments are disclosed in Note 3. 

 

Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis and recognized when earned. 

 

A portion of the City’s investments are invested in pooled funds of the Municipal Finance Authority of British Columbia. 

Earnings on these funds are allocated to the members from time to time based on the market value of the pool. The City 

recognizes only its share of the realized earnings of the pool. This revenue is recorded as investment income and the 

amount is added to the cost of the units held. 

 

To the extent that investments have no stated rate of return, investment income is recognized as it is received. 

 

Expenses 

 

 Expenses are recorded in the period in which the goods or services are acquired and a liability is incurred. 

 

 Use of estimates 

 

 Management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in preparing these financial statements. 

Actual results could differ from the estimates. Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the 

determination of tangible capital assets estimated useful life and related amortization, landfill post closure costs and 

settlement costs associated with outstanding legal actions.   
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CITY OF KELOWNA 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

December 31, 2014 
(all tabular amounts reported in 000’s of dollars) 
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2. Future Accounting Changes 
 

PS 3260 – Liability for contaminated sites 
 

This section establishes the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements for reporting liabilities associated with 

remediation of contaminated sites.  The section does not deal with tangible capital asset retirement obligations, liabilities 

associated with the disposal or sale of a tangible capital asset and acquisition/betterment costs for tangible capital assets 

that are less than the future economic benefits.  This section applies to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2014, with 

early adoption permitted. 

 

PS 2601 – Foreign currency translation 
 

This section revises and replaces the existing Section PS 2600 Foreign currency translation. This section applies to fiscal 

years beginning on or after April 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. 
 

PS 1201 – Financial statement presentation 
 

This section revises and replaces the existing Section PS 1200 Financial statement presentation. This section applies to 

fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. 
 

PS 3450 – Financial instruments 
 

This section establishes standards for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and non-financial 

derivatives. This section applies to fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. 
 

PS 2200 – Related party transactions 
 

This new Section defines a related party and establishes disclosures required for related party transactions. Disclosure of 

information about related party transactions and the relationship underlying them is required when they have occurred at a 

value different from that which would have been arrived at if the parties were unrelated. This Section applies to fiscal years 

beginning on or after April 1, 2017, with early adoption permitted. 
 

PS 3420 – Inter-entity transactions 
 

This section establishes how to account for and report transactions between public sector entities that comprise a 

government’s reporting entity from both a provider and recipient perspective. This Section applies to fiscal years beginning 

on or after April 1, 2017, with early adoption permitted. 

 

3. Financial Assets and Liabilities 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 
 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term investments with maturities of 90 days or less from the date of 

acquisition. 
 

Accounts receivable 
 

Accounts receivable are recorded net of allowance and are comprised of the following: 

 

Type of Receivable  2014  2013 
 

Property Tax $ 5,894 $ 6,012 

Trade Receivables  8,224  12,873 

Due from Federal Government  4,032  1,065 

Due from Provincial Government  7,159  3,816 

Due from Regional Government  219  56 

Utilities  4,346   5,146 

Deferred Development Cost Charges       4,043       3,341 
 

 $ 33,917 $ 32,309 
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CITY OF KELOWNA 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Portfolio investments   

 

 Portfolio investments are recorded at cost and are comprised of the following: 

 

Type of Investment 2014 2013

Municipal Finance Authority Bond/Intermediate Funds $ 33,654 $ 32,627

Provincial and Bank Issued Accrual Notes and Debentures 102,142 116,144

Publicly traded shares 56,297 55,535   

Guaranteed Investment Certificates and Deposit Notes 30,242 13,232

Total Portfolio investments $ 222,335 $ 217,538

 
The quoted market value of the publicly traded shares at December 31, 2014 was $68,524 million (2013 - $52,897 million). 

 

 Operating line of credit 

 

The City has an operating line of credit with the Royal Bank of Canada for an authorized amount of $5.0 million, bearing 

interest at bank prime rate. At December 31, 2014 the balance outstanding was $nil (2013 - $nil). 

 

 Deferred revenue 

 

The City records deferred revenue for funds received in advance on services not yet rendered and is recognized into 

revenue during the period in which the service is provided. The City also records deferred revenue when a contract 

specifies how the resources are to be used and therefore funds received in advance are deferred until the period in which 

the requirements are met. Because these funds are restricted in nature they are shown as a liability. 

 

Deferred Revenue by Type 2014 2013

Tax prepayments $ 17,302 $ 16,159

Construction 12,458 12,857

Local Service Areas 3,978 3,971

Other 2,516 2,662

Grants 763 257

$ 37,017 $ 35,906

 
 Deferred Development Cost Charges (DCC) 

  

The City collects development cost charges to pay for a proportionate share of infrastructure related to new growth.  In 

accordance with the Local Government Act, these funds must be deposited into a separate reserve fund.  Because these 

funds are externally restricted in nature they are shown as a liability. 

  

2013 Receipts Interest Transfers Out 2014

Roads $ 15,364 $ 6,287 $ 412 $ 8,235 $ 13,828

Parks (1,188) 3,316 (24) 1,023 1,081

Water 11,806 444 306 2,960 9,596

Wastewater (1,964) 2,603 (98) 6,897 (6,356)

Total Deferred DCC $ 24,018 $ 12,650 $ 596 $ 19,115 $ 18,149
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Long term debt 
 

Debenture debt principal is reported net of sinking fund balances.  Interest rates on long term debt ranged from 1.58% to 

10.07%.  The weighted average rate for 2014 was 5.08% (2013 – 5.29%). Principal repayments for the next five years are 

as follows:

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

General Fund $ 2,526 $ 2,526 $ 2,506 $ 2,504 $ 1,638

Airport 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 -          

Wastewater Fund 4,157 4,157 4,157 4,157 4,150

Water Fund 333 333 333 333 333

Natural Gas Legacy 1,699 1,699 1,699 1,699 -          

Library Society 460 502 180 -           -          

$ 10,508 $ 10,550 $ 10,208 $ 10,026 $ 6,121

 
Schedule 3 provides a break down of long term debt. 

 

Debt as a percentage of total expenditures: 

 
 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 

 

42.79% 48.84% 53.64% 59.50% 64.66%  
 

4. Tangible Capital Assets and Work in Progress 

 

2014 2013

2014 Tangible 2013 Tangible

Work in Capital Work in Capital 

Progress Assets (NBV) Progress Assets (NBV)

Land 6,372$        191,587$        3,036$          182,146$       

Land Improvements 1,746          35,194            5,452           31,525          

Buildings 5,758          165,580          13,792          163,552        

Infrastructure 30,693        1,099,268       26,393          1,112,180      

Machinery and Equipment 15,491        40,172            10,804          37,888          

Natural Gas System (Capital Lease) -              34,399            -              35,999          

60,060$      1,566,200$     59,477$        1,563,290$    

 
 

Contributions received in 2014 include: 

 

 Type of Contribution 

 

2014 2013

Land - park $ 8,344 $ 2,387

         - transportation -         1

Total Contributed Tangible Capital Assets $ 8,344 $ 2,388

 
Schedule 1 provides a break down of tangible capital assets and work in progress. 
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5. Accumulated Surplus  

Investment in

Reserves for Tangible

Future Equity in Statutory Fund Capital Total Total

Expenditures FortisBC Inc. Reserves Surpluses Assets 2014 2013

Accumulated surplus, beginning of year                    $           90,811           55,535 $       43,892 $       29,145 $     1,502,239 $     1,721,622 $     1,675,481 

Annual surplus (deficit)               766             2,410         1,315       70,419       (26,760)         48,150         46,141 

Transfers           10,635           (1,648)       10,483     (19,470)               -                 -                 -   

Acquisition of tangible capital assets                 -               -       (32,778)         32,778               -                 -   

Repayment of long term debt                 -                   -               -       (10,893)         10,893               -                 -   

Accumulated surplus, end of year $         102,212  $       56,297 $       55,690 $       36,423 $     1,519,150 $     1,769,772 $     1,721,622 

  

Accumulated Surplus detail as follows: 

Balances,

Beginning of Transfer Transfer Annual Balances, 

Description Year From To Surplus End of Year 

Non-Statutory Reserves

General Fund Reserve 52,355$        $ 9,600$      15,027$    437$        58,219$        

Airport Fund Reserve 20,905          10,539      15,485      232          26,083          

Waste Water Fund Reserve 8,046            1,052        340           20            7,354            

Water Fund Reserve 9,505            1,234        2,208        77            10,556          

90,811          22,425      33,060      766          102,212        

Statutory Reserves

Parking Reserve 4,599            1,285        1,445        128          4,887            

Land Reserve 10,288          3,077        9,165        283          16,659          

Capital Works, Machinery & Equip Reserve 29,005          7,927        12,162      904          34,144          

43,892          12,289      22,772      1,315       55,690          

Surplus by Fund

General Fund Surplus 2,000            47,285      5,525        41,876     2,116            

Airport Fund Surplus 596               15,734      1,333        14,401     596               

Waste Water Fund Surplus 17,115          14,953      8,749        10,390     21,301          

Water Fund Surplus 4,419            2,092        3,465        1,759       7,551            

Natural Gas Legacy Surplus 4,849            3,299        1,572        1,572       4,694            

Library Surplus 166               843           421           421          165               

Accumulated Surplus 29,145          84,206      21,065      70,419     36,423          

Equity Investment

Equity in FortisBC Inc. 55,535          1,648        -           2,410       56,297          

Investment in Non Financial Assets

Investment in Tangible Capital Assets 1,502,239     46,041      89,712      (26,760)    1,519,150     

Accumulated Surplus 1,721,622$   166,609$  166,609$  48,150$   1,769,772$   
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6. Taxation 

 

  Taxation revenue comprises the following amounts raised less transfers to other governments: 

 

  2014  2013 

Taxes collected  

 Property taxes $ 199,000 $ 192,996 

 Local improvement levies  104  104 

 Frontage tax – water  1,406  1,390 

 Specified sewer area recoveries  1,655  1,925 

 Grants in lieu of taxes   486  475 

 Levies  6,409  6,178 

   209,060  203,068 

 

Less transfers to other governments 

 Province of BC (school taxes)  65,932  65,259 

 BC Assessment Authority  2,003  2,001 

 Regional Hospital District  10,896  10,834 

 Regional District of Central Okanagan  10,963  10,130 

   89,794  88,224 

 

Net taxes available for municipal purposes $ 119,266 $ 114,844 

 

 

7. Government Transfers  

 

Government transfers are the major source of transfers to the City.  Government transfers received are for completed 

projects that meet the required criteria as set out by the Government body providing the funding.  Due to the completion of 

the projects in 2014 there is no deferred revenue balances related to these transfers.  Government transfers do not include 

grants in lieu of taxes received from the Federal and Provincial governments.  In 2014 the City received and recorded as 

revenue the following transfers: 

 

 

  2014  2013 

Operating transfers  

 Federal $ 531 $ 419 

 Provincial  15,313  15,045 

   15,844  15,464 

 

Capital transfers 

 Federal  1,660  2,391 

 Provincial  4,882  2,388 

   6,543  4,779 

 

Total transfers $ 22,387 $ 20,243 

 

 

8. Contingent liabilities 
 

 Regional District of Central Okanagan 
 

 Regional District debt is, under the provisions of the Local Government Act, a direct, joint and several liability of the 

District and each member municipality within the District including the City of Kelowna. 

 

 The loan agreements with the Regional District of Central Okanagan and the Municipal Finance Authority provide that if at 

any time the scheduled payments provided for in the agreements are not sufficient to meet the Authority's obligation with 

respect to such borrowing, the resulting deficiency becomes a liability of the member municipalities. 
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Pension liability 
 

 The City and its employees contribute to the Municipal Pension Plan (the Plan), a jointly trusteed pension plan. The Board 

of Trustees, representing plan members and employers, is responsible for overseeing the management of the Plan, 

including investment of the assets and administration of benefits.  The Plan is a multi-employer contributory pension plan.  

Basic pension benefits provided are based on a formula. The Plan has about 182,000 active members and approximately 

75,000 retired members. Active members include approximately 36,000 contributors from local governments.   

 

The most recent valuation as at December 31, 2012 indicated a $1,370 million funding deficit for basic pension benefits.  

The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2015 with results available in 2016.  Employers participating in the Plan 

record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions made during the fiscal year (defined contribution 

pension plan accounting).  This is because the Plan records accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the Plan in aggregate 

with the result that there is no consistent and reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to the individual 

employers participating in the Plan.   

 

The City of Kelowna paid $5.9 million (2013 - $5.7 million) for employer contributions while employee contributions 

were $4.8 million (2013 - $4.7 million) to the plan in fiscal 2014. 

 

Post employment benefits 
 

 The City of Kelowna does not accrue expenses for post employment benefits such as retirement allowances or 

compensated absences (sick leave).  City employees retiring do not receive any retirement allowance that either vests or 

accrues over the period of employment.  Sick benefits do not accrue and are not vested.  The City recognizes the expense 

for sick time when the event obligates the City to pay. 

 

 Legal actions 

 

 The City of Kelowna is currently engaged in certain legal actions, the outcome of which is not determinable at this time. 

Accordingly, no provision has been made in the accounts for these actions. 

  

The amount of loss, if any, arising from these contingent liabilities will be recorded in the accounts in the period in which 

the loss is realized.  The City of Kelowna has insurance policies and financial reserves to offset associated risks. 

 

9. Commitments 

 

Agreements, contracts and purchase orders 

 

 The City has entered into various agreements and contracts for services and construction with periods ranging from one to 

five years. 

 

The City has purchase orders open as at December 31, 2014 which have not been recorded in the accounts.  Due to the 

reporting capabilities in the Agresso financial system the balance of these open purchase orders are not determinable at this 

time.  The funding for the majority of these obligations has been set aside in reserves for future expenditures.  These 

amounts will be recorded in the accounts in the period the goods and services, to which they relate, are received. 

 

Landfill closure and post closure costs 
 

As required by PSAS and regulated by the Ministry of Water, Land and Air Protection, the City has agreed to obligations 

regarding the operation of the landfill site.  These obligations include recognition of closure and post-closure liability.  The 

City’s estimated liability for these expenditures is recognized as the landfill site’s capacity is used.  The reported liability of 

$3.6 million (2013 - $3.6 million) represents the portion of the estimated total expenditure recognized as at December 31, 

2014.  The liability and annual expenditure is calculated based on the ratio of current usage to the total capacity of the site 

and the discounted estimated future cash flows associated with closure and post-closure activities. 
 

The reported liability is based on estimates and assumptions with respect to events extending over the remaining life of the 

landfill.  The remaining capacity of the landfill site is estimated at 15.0 million tonnes, which is 81.7% of the site’s total 

capacity.  The future cash flows for closure and post-closure cost is estimated at $11.9 million as at December 31, 2014.  

The landfill site is expected to reach its capacity in 2092.   
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Kelowna Family Y Centre loan guarantee agreement 
 

 The City has, under the terms of the partnering agreement between the City of Kelowna and YMCA-YWCA of Central 

Okanagan, guaranteed repayment in the event that the YMCA-YWCA of Central Okanagan defaults on a $1.8 million, 20 

year loan.  Under the agreement the City shall resume operation of the facility and assume responsibility for the repayment 

of the debt incurred by the YMCA-YWCA of Central Okanagan.  During 2010 an amendment was made to the agreement 

for additional financing of $700,000.  As at December 31, 2014 the outstanding loan balance was $1,189,598 (2013 - 

$1,286,901). 

 

Multi-Purpose Facility Public/Private Partnership 
 

The City has, under the terms of the Preferred Share Agreement between the City of Kelowna and RG Properties Ltd., 

purchased $6.0 million of preferred shares in RG Arenas (Kelowna) Ltd. at a cost of $1 per share.  The terms and 

conditions of the purchase are subject to the terms of a Tripartite Agreement between the City of Kelowna, Royal Bank of 

Canada and RG Arenas (Kelowna) Ltd., RG Properties Ltd., Prospero Canadian Land Investment Fund Ltd. group of  

companies.  
 

 

The City has, under the terms of the above noted Tripartite Agreement, committed to the annual purchase of community 

use time at the Multi-Purpose facility, commencing with substantial completion, on November 10, 1999 under the 

following terms: 
 

(i) $1.3 million per annum for Years 1 to 3 comprised of a payment of $1.1 million, which for Years 2 and 3 is 

subject to a minimum CPI increase of 1% per annum and a maximum average CPI increase of 5% per annum, 

plus an annual payment of $150,000 without any adjustment for CPI; 

(ii) $1.2 million per annum for Years 4 to 7, subject to a minimum CPI increase of 1% per annum and a maximum 

average CPI increase of 5% per annum; 

(iii) $1.2 million per annum for Years 8 to 10, subject to a minimum CPI increase of 1% per annum and a maximum 

average CPI increase of 5% per annum, minus $150,000 per annum; 

(iv) $1.0 million per annum for Years 11 to 20, subject to a minimum CPI increase of 1% per annum and a maximum 

average CPI increase of 5% per annum; and 

(v) $0.5 million per annum for Years 21 to 30, subject to a minimum CPI increase of 1% per annum and a maximum 

average CPI increase of 5% per annum. 

 

The year 2014 represented year 15 of the agreement. 
 

Should the City not exercise, in its sole discretion, its option to renew any future term for community use time in the Multi-

Purpose facility, under the above terms it shall be required to make a lump sum payment to RG Arenas (Kelowna) Ltd. on 

or before the 15th day of one of year 6, 11, 16, 21 or 26 commencing with the year of substantial completion in the 

following amounts: 

 

2005  Year 6 $13.2 million 

2010  Year 11 $11.9 million 

2015  Year 16 $10.4 million 

2020  Year 21 $6.7 million 

2025  Year 26 $4.5 million 

 

Upon such payment, no further amounts will be payable to RG Arenas (Kelowna) Ltd. and the City will have the right to 

the community use time for the period from the beginning of the year in which the payment was made until November 9, 

2029 without any additional payment. 

 

The City did exercise its option to renew the purchase of community use time under the above annual payments terms and 

accordingly did not make either of the lump sum payment of $13.2 or $11.9 million otherwise due to RG Arenas 

(Kelowna) Ltd. in years 6 or 11. 
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Royal Canadian Mounted Police Services 

 

The Province of British Columbia and the Federal Government have an agreement with the Royal Canadian Mounted 

Police to provide police services for various municipalities in the Province.  This agreement has a 20 year term expiring on 

March 31, 2032.   

 

Okanagan rail corridor 

 

The City, on behalf of the inter-jurisdictional acquisition team signed a negotiated sales and purchase agreement with CN 

Rail for the 47.5km of discontinued rail line between Kelowna and Mile 88 in Coldstream. The City’s estimated cost of the 

purchase is $7.6 million plus a 50% interest in the land within the District of Lake Country’s boundaries at an estimated 

cost of $2.6 million. This agreement is subject to certain conditions being satisfied and is expected to be completed in 

2015. 

  

10. Long-term investments 

 

Kelowna Developments Ltd. 

 

 The investment in Kelowna Developments Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary, is carried at its cost of $2. The company is 

inactive with no assets or liabilities and is being retained for potential future use. 

 

RG Arenas (Kelowna) Ltd. 

 

The investment in preferred shares in RG Arenas (Kelowna) Ltd. is carried at its cost of $6.0 million.  The shares were 

purchased under the terms of the Preferred Share Agreement between the City of Kelowna and RG Properties Ltd. and are 

to be retained until 2028 per the terms of that agreement described in Note 8. 

 

11. Letters of credit 

 

 In addition to the performance deposits reflected in cash balances, the City is holding irrevocable Letters of Credit in the 

amount of $28.9 million (2013 - $27.1 million) which were received from depositors to ensure their performance of works 

to be undertaken within the City.  These amounts are not reflected in the financial statements but are available to satisfy 

any liabilities arising from non-performance by the depositors.  Included in the $28.9 million, the City is holding 

irrevocable Letters of Credit in the amount of $4.1 million (2013 - $3.4 million) which are received from developers to 

ensure payment of development cost charges in future years.     

 

12. Capital lease payable 

 

The City has entered into an agreement with FortisBC Energy Inc. (“FortisBC”) that has resulted in the creation of the 

Natural Gas Legacy Fund. 

 

Capital lease 

 

Under the terms of the agreement the City entered into a 35 year capital lease with FortisBC on November 1, 2001 for the 

natural gas distribution system within the City’s municipal boundary.  The City has prepaid $47.5 million of the capital 

lease obligation and has financed the prepayment through debenture debt.  The remaining obligation of $2.3 million, which 

is included in long term debt, will be paid with annual lease payments of $260,870 including interest based on FortisBC 

approved pre-tax weighted average cost of capital of 10.072%. 

 

Operating lease 
 

The City also entered into a 17 year operating lease with FortisBC on November 1, 2001 whereby the City leases back to 

FortisBC the operations of the gas distribution system.  Under the operating lease FortisBC is required to make annual 

lease payments to the City calculated by a formula specified in the agreement which is based on the total annual revenue 

generated by the transaction.  At the end of the 17 year term FortisBC has the option of making a termination payment to 

the City equal to the unamortized portion of the City’s $47.5 million prepayment under the capital lease, which is estimated 

to be $27.0 million, or negotiate a new 18 year operating lease with a continuation of the annual lease payments which 

existed under the previous 17 year operating lease.  
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Annual lease revenues for the past five years are: 

 

2010 $5.0 million

2011 $4.8 million

2012 $4.6 million

2013 $4.4 million

2014 $4.3 million
 

13. City of Kelowna Library Society 
 

 In March 1997, the City transferred the Library building and land located on Ellis Street in the City of Kelowna and the 

related mortgage loan to the City of Kelowna Library Society, a non-profit society.  The City has guaranteed the repayment 

of the mortgage.  As at December 31, 2014 the mortgage balance was $1.1 million (2013 - $1.6 million).  The City has 

taken back an option to purchase these assets at a nominal value.  The Society’s financial information is included in with 

the City of Kelowna consolidated financial statements. 

 

14.  Trust funds 

 

In accordance with PSAS, trust funds are not included in the City’s consolidated financial statements.  The City 

administers a Cemetery Maintenance Fund for the perpetual care and maintenance of the City owned and operated 

cemetery.  As at December 31, 2014 the Trust Fund balance is $2.3 million (2013 - $2.2 million). 

 

15. Segmented Information 
 

The City of Kelowna is connecting communities and providing a multitude of services to the citizens of Kelowna.  The 

City’s operations and activities are organized and reported by funds and departments. The General Fund reports on 

operations, funded primarily by property taxes, which include services provided by the City such as general government, 

protective services, transportation services, recreation and cultural services, as well as public health, and environmental and 

development services.  The City also operates its own airport and City utilities comprised of the electrical, wastewater and 

water systems that are self-sustaining operations. Operating results reported by the following segments are included in 

Schedule 2. 
 

General Government 

General Government operations are primarily funded by property taxation and business tax revenues. The expenses within 

the department are for executive and legislative costs, general administration, and other general government areas such as 

community service grants and rental property operating costs within the municipality. The general revenue reported under 

the department includes revenues associated with taxation, business tax revenues and senior government payments in lieu 

of taxes. These revenues have not been apportioned to other departments supported by the General Fund. 
 

Protective Services 

Protective services are comprised of police services provided by the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, fire protection 

services, building inspection services and bylaw enforcement as well as the Provincial Emergency Program.   
 

Police services include administration, crime investigation and prevention, traffic, prisoner custody and court liaison 

expenses.  
 

The fire department is responsible for effective fire protection and public safety services to the City. This includes fire 

suppression and rescue, prevention and investigation, specialty rescue/first medical responses and fire safety inspections. 
 

Costs for maintenance and repair of police and fire buildings are included in this section.  

 

Transportation Services 

Transportation services are responsible for the delivery of municipal public works services related to the planning, 

development and maintenance of streets and roads, bridges, drainage systems, street lights, traffic lights and signals, 

parking lots and on-street parking, and public transit as well as maintenance of workshops, yards and other buildings. The 

mandate is to provide a safe, efficient, environmentally-sensitive and cost-effective transportation network.  
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Recreation & Cultural Services 

Recreation & cultural services provide services related to recreation, leisure and culture including administration and 

program costs as well as grounds and building maintenance. Facilities managed within this area include parks and 

playgrounds, arenas, swimming pools, beaches, boat launches, stadiums as well as community and seniors centers.  The 

H2O Adventure & Fitness Centre, Parkinson Recreation Centre, Kelowna Community Theatre, Kelowna Museum, 

Kelowna Art Gallery and the Rotary Centre for the Arts are some of the larger facilities included. 
 

Other Services (Public Health/Environmental/Development Services) 

Public health services are comprised of cemetery operations and maintenance, environmental and development services 

including community planning and zoning as well as landfill operations. 

 

Airport Services 

The Airport, owned and operated by the City of Kelowna, provides quality airport services in a safe and cost effective 

manner in compliance with Federal regulations. The Airport is accounted for in its own fund. 

 

Wastewater Services 

Kelowna’s sanitary sewer system collects, conveys, treats and disposes of domestic wastewater (derived from the home) 

and industrial wastewater (resulting from business use, manufacturing and processing). The system currently services 

approximately 70% of Kelowna’s population and continues to be extended to unserviced areas. Kelowna’s wastewater 

system has a treatment capacity of 72 million liters per day.  Wastewater Utility is accounted for in its own fund.  

 

Water Services 

The Water Utility is responsible for planning, designing, building, operating and maintaining the City’s Water Utility and 

is one of five water suppliers operating within Kelowna’s boundaries. The Water Utility is accounted for in its own fund. 

 

Natural Gas Legacy Services 

Natural Gas Legacy Fund was created from an agreement with FortisBC for a 35 year capital lease for the natural gas 

distribution system within the City’s municipal boundary and a 17 year operating lease whereby the City leases back to 

FortisBC the operations of the gas distribution system.  The Natural Gas Legacy Fund is accounted for in its own fund.     

 

Library Services 

The City of Kelowna Library Society is a non-profit society instituted and controlled by the City of Kelowna.  The Society 

was incorporated for the purpose of establishing, operating, and maintaining libraries and library services for the benefit of 

the City of Kelowna and its citizens.  Financial statements for the Society are prepared separately and are consolidated with 

the City of Kelowna. 

  

Statutory Reserves 

Statutory Reserves include funds for parking, land and capital works, machinery and equipment. 

 

16. Expenses by object 

  

 Total consolidated expenses by object are itemized in Schedule 2 – Segmented information. 
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17. Budget data 

  

The budget figures are from the Annual Five-Year Financial Plan Bylaw adopted before May 15 of each year.  Subsequent 

amendments have been made by Council to reflect changes in the budget as required by law.  Amortization of tangible 

capital assets was not included in the budget.  The table below shows the reconciliation between the approved budget and 

the budget presented in these consolidated financial statements.   

 

Budget Amount

Revenues:

Operating budget $ 237,794           

Capital budget 29,433             

267,227           

Expenses:

Operating  budget 193,407           

Capital budget 182,854           

376,261           

Annual deficit per approved budget (109,034)          

Add: tangible capital asset purchases 182,854           

Annual surplus per statement of operations $ 73,820             

 
18. Comparative figures 

 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the presentation format adopted in the current year. 
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Schedule 1 - Tangible Capital Assets

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Other Subtotal

Land Machinery & Machinery &

Land Improvements Buildings Vehicles Equipment Computer Misc Equipment

Cost

Balance, beginning of year $ 182,146          $ 58,326            $ 274,367     $ 28,809           $ 44,341         $ 13,255        $ 3,804          $ 90,209          

Add: additions during the year 13,174            5,978              11,023       1,296             4,265           934             1,778          8,273            

Less: capital held for resale (220)                -                  -            -                 -              -              -              -                

Less: disposals during the year (3,513)             -                  (136)          (586)               (152)            (4,305)         -              (5,043)           

Balance, end of year 191,587          64,304            285,254     29,519           $ 48,454         9,884          5,582          93,439          

Accumulated Amortization

Balance, beginning of year -                  26,801            110,815     12,993           28,222         9,895          1,211          52,321          

Add: amortization -                  2,309              8,981         2,177             2,669           836             235             5,917            

Less: accumulated amortization on disposals -                  -                  (122)          (514)               (152)            (4,305)         -              (4,971)           

Balance, end of year -                  29,110            119,674     14,656           30,739         6,426          1,446          53,267          

Net Book Value of Tangible Capital Assets $ 191,587          $ 35,194            $ 165,580     $ 14,863           $ 17,715         $ 3,458          $ 4,136          $ 40,172          

Work in Progress $ 6,372              $ 1,746              $ 5,758         $ -                 $ 3,862           $ 1,114          $ 10,515        $ 15,491          

Roads, Lanes, Bridges, Underground, Subtotal Natural Gas

Plant & Sidewalks & Overhead & Airport Capital Total Total

Facilities Bike Paths Overpasses Other Networks Infrastructure Infrastructure Lease 2014 2013

Cost

Balance, beginning of year $ 164,850          $ 481,624          $ 29,606       $ 1,013,764      $ 39,960         $ 1,729,804   $ 55,609        $ 2,390,461     $ 2,356,081   

Add: additions during the year 10,952            4,664              530            9,623             3,923           29,692        -              68,140          90,828        

Less: capital held for resale -                  -                  -            -                 -              -              -              (220)              (449)            

Less: disposals during the year -                  -                  -            -                 -              -              -              (8,692)           (55,999)       

Balance, end of year 175,802          486,288          30,136       1,023,387      43,883         1,759,496   55,609        2,449,689     2,390,461   

Accumulated Amortization

Balance, beginning of year 47,779            215,342          6,699         328,332         19,472         617,624      19,610        827,171        789,312      

Add: amortization 5,900              18,776            462            15,492           1,974           42,604        1,600          61,411          60,092        

Less: accumulated amortization on disposals -                  -                  -            -                 -              -              -              (5,093)           (22,233)       

Balance, end of year 53,679            234,118          7,161         343,824         21,446         660,228      21,210        883,489        827,171      

Net Book Value of Tangible Capital Assets $ 122,123          $ 252,170          $ 22,975       $ 679,563         $ 22,437         $ 1,099,268   $ 34,399        $ 1,566,200     $ 1,563,290   

Work in Progress $ 1,094              $ 15,287            $ 3,211         $ 7,578             $ 3,523           $ 30,693        $ -              60,060          59,477        

$ 1,626,260     $ 1,622,767   

Machinery & Equipment

Infrastructure

2
1
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CITY OF KELOWNA
Schedule 2 - Segmented Information

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

General 

Gov't

Protective 

Services

Transpor-

tation 

 Services

Recreation

& Cultural 

Services

Other 

Services

Airport 

Services

Wastewater 

Services

Water 

Services

Nat. Gas 

Legacy 

Services

Library 

Services

Statutory

Reserves 2014 

Revenue

Taxation $ 116,074      $ -            $ 104             $ -               $ -             $ -               $ 1,655             $ 1,433            $ -              $ -            $ -               $ 119,266       

Fees and charges 34,864        434            8,384          4,039            12,562       26,180          14,849           11,296          4,481          795           66               117,950       

Interest earned 6,157          -            -              -               -             251               579                202               -              -            1,249          8,438           

DCC contributions -              -            7,120          1,024            -             -               6,897             2,959            -              -            -              18,000         

Contribution from other governments 222             3,704         14,549        483               2,830         116               463                20                 -              -            -              22,387         

Other capital contributions 728             -            -              -               -             289               1,157             64                 1,844          -            -              4,082           

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 4,455          -            -              -               -             -               -                 -                -              -            -              4,455           

162,500      4,138         30,157        5,546            15,392       26,836          25,600           15,974          6,325          795           1,315          294,578       

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 14,419        23,139       8,386          10,480          4,633         3,797            3,001             2,139            -              14             -              70,008         

Contract and professional services 3,303          1,481         21,935        9,464            7,404         847               838                690               -              134           -              46,096         

RCMP contract -              23,891       -              -               -             -               -                 -                -              -            -              23,891         

Materials and supplies 4,465          1,419         5,303          9,926            1,531         5,139            1,119             779               -              27             -              29,708         

Equipment 201             305            2,306          1,453            1,469         14                 634                396               -              2               -              6,780           

Allocations (3,799)         (65)            (294)            (128)             (746)          1,306            2,945             782               20               -            -              21                

Cost recoveries (620)            (1,631)       (7,380)         (413)             (729)          (638)             (2)                   (543)              -              -            -              (11,956)       

Grants and external transfers 350             104            -              1,046            2,225         -               (131)               -                -              -            -              3,594           

Utilities 161             222            1,863          1,979            175            667               1,090             891               -              80             -              7,128           

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,740          945            26,436        8,776            1,655         4,938            10,614           4,545            1,600          162           -              61,411         

Total before Debt 20,220        49,810       58,555        42,583          17,617       16,070          20,108           9,679            1,620          419           -              236,681       

Debt interest and fiscal services 2,572          -            -              -               -             744               2,953             472               2,889          117           -              9,747           

Total operating expenses 22,792        49,810       58,555        42,583          17,617       16,814          23,061           10,151          4,509          536           -              246,428       

Annual Surplus (Deficit) $ 139,708      $ (45,672)     $ (28,398)       $ (37,037)        $ (2,225)       $ 10,022          $ 2,539             $ 5,823            $ 1,816          $ 259           $ 1,315          $ 48,150         

2
2
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CITY OF KELOWNA
Schedule 2 - Segmented Information

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

General 

Gov't

Protective 

Services

Transpor-

tation 

 Services

Recreation

& Cultural 

Services

Other 

Services

Airport 

Services

Electrical 

Services

Wastewater 

Services

Water 

Services

Nat. Gas 

Legacy 

Services

Library 

Services

Statutory

Reserves 2013 

Revenue

Taxation $ 111,402      $ -            $ 104             $ -                   $ -                $ -                   $ -                $ 1,925 $ 1,413 $ -               $ -               $ -               $ 114,844        

Fees and charges 24,939        443           7,715          4,035           11,717       24,233         9,112         14,465 9,584 4,571 793 263          111,870        

Interest earned 3,793          -            -                 -                   -                184              1,207         405 120 -               -               1,109       6,818           

DCC contributions -                 -            584             37                4,610         -                   -                5,929             360             -               -               -               11,520         

Contribution from other governments 1,254          3,802        12,164        555              1,638         443              -                367                20               -               -               -               20,243         

Other capital contributions 667             -            -                 -                   -                226              -                1,183             49 1,634       -               -               3,759           

Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets 4,212          -            -                 -                   -                -                   19,069       -                    -                  -               -               -               23,281         

146,267 4,245 20,567 4,627 17,965 25,086 29,388 24,274 11,546 6,205 793 1,372 292,335

Expenses
Salaries and benefits 14,356        24,528      8,253          10,378         4,915         3,704           59             3,036             1,963          -               23            -               71,215         

Contract and professional services 3,164          1,750        21,178        7,522           7,595         801              862           573                629             -               132          -               44,206         

RCMP contract -                 22,305      -                 -                   -                91                -                -                    -                  -               -               -               22,396         

Materials and supplies 4,641          1,424        -                 9,708           1,418         5,011           6,288         1,203             724             -               18            -               30,435         

Equipment 198             290           2,262          1,358           1,728         10                -                634                384             -               3              -               6,867           

Allocations (5,178)         -            (237)            (123)             (790)          1,165           1,369         3,068             729             20            -               -               23                

Cost recoveries (2,597)         (1,650)       (2,559)         (500)             (28)            (667)             (550)          (7)                  (477)            -               -               -               (9,035)          

Grants and external transfers 361             94             22               1,018           2,176         -                   -                (124)              -                  -               77            -               3,624           

Utilities 162             221           1,649          1,853           145           557              2               1,100             817             -               -               -               6,506           

Amortization of tangible capital assets 1,769          932           26,355        8,607           1,426         4,532           609           9,583             4,517          1,600       162          -               60,092         

Total before Debt 16,876        49,894      56,923        39,821         18,585       15,204         8,639         19,066           9,286          1,620       415          -               236,329        

Debt interest and fiscal services 2,595          -            -                 -                   -                744              -                3,009             472             2,892       153          -               9,865           

Total operating expenses 19,471 49,894      56,923 39,821 18,585 15,948 8,639 22,075 9,758 4,512 568 -               246,194        

Annual Surplus (Deficit) $ 126,796 $ (45,649) $ (36,356) $ (35,194) $ (620) $ 9,138 $ 20,749 $ 2,199 $ 1,788 $ 1,693 $ 225 $ 1,372 $ 46,141

2
3
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CITY OF KELOWNA

Schedule 3 - Long Term Debt

as at December 31, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Long term debt - General Fund

Debenture Debt 

Debt Sinking Fund Current

Year of Balance Balance Amount Interest

Maturity Purpose Dec. 31/14 Dec. 31/14 of Issue Rate

Public Works %

2019 South Pandosy Spec Area 1 $ 81                      $ 153                 $ 234              2.10

2019 South Pandosy Spec Area 2 141                    269                 410              2.10

2019 Automated Curb Side Carts 2,640                 2,170              4,810           4.13

2021 Downtown Parkade 903                    1,297              2,200           4.43

2022 Chapman Parkade 2,110                 1,961              4,071           5.37

2028 DCC Roads 4,654                 5,746              10,400         5.15

Local Improvements

2016 Local Improvements 59                      334                 393              4.00

2016 Local Improvements 40                      229                 269              4.43

2017 Local Improvements 12                      42                   54                4.82

2019 Local Improvements 24                      45                   69                3.15

2035 Lawrence Ave LAS 345                    -                      345              3.00

Recreation and Cultural

2021 Kokanee Gym Facility 232                    268                 500              5.69

2027 H2O Centre 20,206               7,294              27,500         4.82

2027 Kokanee Gymnastic 588                    212                 800              4.82

2028 H2O Centre 1,555                 445                 2,000           5.15

Total Debt - General Fund $ 33,590               $ 20,465            $ 54,055         

24
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CITY OF KELOWNA

Schedule 3 - Long Term Debt (continued)

as at December 31, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Long term debt - Wastewater Fund

Debenture Debt

Debt Sinking Fund Current

Year of Balance Balance Amount Interest

Maturity Purpose Dec. 31/14 Dec. 31/14 of Issue Rate

Specified Area Programs %

2018 Spec. Area 18 - Caramillo 39                    96                  135             4.65

2018 Spec. Area 19 - Poplar Point 22                    55                  77               4.65

2022 Spec. Area 22A - Gerstmar 20                    19                  39               6.06

2024 Spec. Area 21A - McKenzie Bench 836                  514                1,350          2.00

2024 Spec. Area 22B - Vista Rd 49                    30                  79               2.00

2024 Spec. Area 22C - Hein Rd 165                  101                266             2.00

2024 Spec. Area 22D - Elwyn Rd 92                    57                  149             2.00

2024 Spec. Area 22E - Dease Rd 59                    37                  96               2.00

2024 Spec. Area 22F - Mills Rd 212                  130                342             2.00

2024 Spec. Area 29 - Campion Cambro 542                  332                874             2.00

2024 Spec. Area 30 - Acland 226                  138                364             2.00

2025 Spec. Area 20 - North Rutland 4,397               2,425             6,822          4.17

2025 Spec. Area 28A - Okaview 412                  226                638             4.17

2028 Spec Area 26 - Fisher Rd 1,571               450                2,021          5.15

2028 Spec Area 34 - Country Rhodes 338                  97                  435             5.15

2028 Spec Area 36 - Clifton 208                  59                  267             5.15

Sewer Improvement Programs

2014 Glenwood Sewer Main Replacement -                       90                  90               3.15

2014 Long St. Sewer Main Replacement -                       64                  64               3.15

2019 Byrns Baron Main 1,612               2,254             3,866          2.00

Sewage Treatment Plant

2014 Sewer Treatment Plant Phase III -                       8,000             8,000          5.99

2019 Waste Water Treatment Expansion 10,977             9,023             20,000        4.90

2019 Waste Water Treatment Expansion 5,489               4,511             10,000        4.13

2020 Waste Water Treatment Expansion 6,463               3,537             10,000        4.00

2031 Brandt's Creek Tradewaste Treatment 3,208               592                3,800          4.00

Total Debt - Wastewater Fund $ 36,937             $ 32,837           $ 69,774        

25
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CITY OF KELOWNA
Schedule 3 - Long Term Debt (continued)

as at December 31, 2014

(in thousands of dollars)

Long term debt - Water Fund

Debenture Debt Debt Sinking Fund Current

Balance Balance Amount Interest

Maturity Purpose Dec. 31/14 Dec. 31/14 of Issue Rate

Specified Area Programs %

2023 Spec Area 16 - Byrns $ 22                         $ 17                     $ 39               4.78

2024 Spec Area 18 - Lakeshore 15                         9                       24               2.00

2028 Spec Area 26 - Fisher Rd 231                       66                     297             5.15

Water Improvement Programs

2028 Cedar Creek Pump Station 5,889                    1,688               7,577          5.15

2031 Poplar Point Pump Station Upgrade 1,790                    210                   2,000          4.00

Total Debt - Water Fund $ 7,947                    $ 1,990               $ 9,937          

Long term debt - Airport Fund

Debenture Debt

2018 Airport Expansion $ 7,161                    $ 8,839               $ 16,000       4.65

Total Debt - Airport Fund $ 7,161                    $ 8,839               $ 16,000       

Long term debt - Natural Gas Legacy Fund
Debenture Debt 

2018 Leased Capital Assets $ 10,009                  $ 19,791             $ 29,800       4.43

2018 Leased Capital Assets 6,549                    12,951             19,500       4.43

16,558                  $ 32,742             49,300       

Capital Lease Payable 2,276                    2,396          10.072

Total Debt  - Natural Gas Legacy  Fund $ 18,834                  $ 51,696       

Long term debt - Library

2017 Mortgage - Building $ 1,142                    $ 5,100          8.94

Total Debt - Library  Fund $ 1,142                    $ 5,100          

Total City Long Term Debt $ 105,611                $ 96,873             $ 206,562     

26
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City Hall
1435 Water Street
Kelowna, BC  V1Y 1J4
Tel 250 469-8500 
ask@kelowna.ca

kelowna.ca
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CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11094 
Z15-0014 – Caroline Kaltenhauser  

1432 McInnes Avenue 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot 3, District Lot 137, ODYD, Plan 3756 located on 1432 McInnes 
Avenue, Kelowna, B.C., from the RU6 – Two Dwelling Housing zone to the RM1 – Four 
Dwelling Housing zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 
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CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11095 
Z15-0011 – Imre & Jennifer Csorba  

1280 Hwy 33 E 

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification of Lot B, Section 13, Township 26, ODYD, Plan 25650 located on 1280 
Hwy 33 E, Kelowna, B.C., from the A1 – Agriculture 1 zone to the A1c – Agriculture 1 
with Carriage House zone. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 
 
 
Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
 
Approved under the Transportation Act 
 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
(Approving Officer-Ministry of Transportation) 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 
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Report to Council 
 

 

Date: 

 
May 6, 2015 
 

File: 
 

1810-80 

To:  
 

City Manager                                                 
 

From: 
 

Alan Newcombe, Infrastructure Divisional Director 

Subject: 
 

Memorial Parkade – Parkade Naming and Budget Update 

  

 

Recommendations: 
 
THAT . . . Council endorses, by resolution, “Memorial Parkade” as the formal name for use on 
the new parkade to be constructed at 1424 Ellis Street, as per this report from the 
Infrastructure Division Director, dated May 6, 2015. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT . . . Council amend the 2015 Financial Plan Capital Budget approved for 
the Memorial Parkade project, from $15,830,350 to $19,247,850, with the increase funded 
from the Downtown Parking Reserve, as per this report from the Infrastructure Divisional 
Director, dated May 6, 2015. 
 
Purposes:  
 
To seek Council endorsement to formalize the name of the new parkade facility to be 
constructed on Ellis Street.  
 
To provide Council an update on the financial status of the Memorial Parkade project and to 
seek Council endorsement to increase the budget. 
 
Background re Parkade Naming: 
 
To date, the project has been unofficially referred to as “Memorial Parkade” or “Ellis 
Parkade”.  Prior to the start of construction it is recommended that the official name of the 
future facility be established.   Council Policy No 343, the Civic Community Facility Naming 
Policy, outlines the naming criteria for community facilities.  While the policy does not 
specifically address parking facilities, it provides good guidance for the types of names to be 
considered.  Criteria include:  respect civic identity, preserve any geographic, natural or 
physical features, preserve any historic or landmark connotation of particular significance to 
the area in which the facility is located, or for the City as a whole.   
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In addition to meeting the criteria in the policy, recent best practices in way-finding suggest 
that a well-known physical landmark should be used in the name to help guide residents to a 
facility (i.e. the “Library Parkade”). 
 
The parkade is being built on an existing surface parking lot immediately south of Memorial 
Arena.  Memorial Arena is a recognized community landmark and recreational facility.  The 
surface parking is referenced as the “Memorial Arena Lot” on parking maps, including the city 
website.  
 
Additionally, the name “Memorial Parkade” was used as the primary reference for the facility 
in the loan authorization bylaw (Bylaw No 10742) adopted to help fund construction of the 
parkade.   
 
Last summer, staff discussed potential names with the Kelowna Museums Society and with 
staff of the Cultural District. A number of names were proposed and evaluated relative to 
geographical and suitability reasons in accordance with the Civic Community Facility Naming 
Policy.  Based on this initial feedback, consultation was then conducted with the Royal 
Canadian Legion and Veterans Affairs regarding the possibility of using “Memorial” in the 
official name of the parkade.  These groups confirmed their support. 
 
Background re Parkade Funding: 
 
The original proposal for the Memorial Parkade is that it would accommodate approximately 
438 stalls (410 of which would be dedicated to serving weekday office daytime hour use by 
the new Interior Health Authority (IHA) office building being developed at Ellis and Doyle).  
The Memorial Parkade also includes two levels of office space on the Ellis Street frontage to 
accommodate City staff when the lease expires on the current space at the Central Green 
property.   
 
The Okanagan Centre for Innovation (OCI) office building project, currently under 
development at 460 Doyle Avenue, generates an off-street parking requirement of 128 stalls.  
In order to maximize the parking potential of the Memorial Parkade site and take advantage 
of the cost efficiencies of a project already under development, the original 438 stall design 
of the facility has been amended per Council direction in 2014 to accommodate an additional 
128 stalls, for a total of 566 stalls. 
 
Although the 128 additional stalls required in this area to support the OCI project will be 
constructed as part of the Memorial Parkade project, any monthly parking permits for patrons 
of the OCI facility will be provided within the Library Parkade to ensure public parking 
availability is maintained in both parkades. 
 
The stall breakdown for the new Memorial Parkade is estimated as follows: 
 

General Public parking (including 6 accessible stalls) 139 
Interior Health Authority staff parking (Mon-Fri 6am-6pm) 380 
Interior Health Authority designated parking (24/7 Reserved)   30 
City of Kelowna fleet vehicle parking (Bylaw Services, etc) 17 

Total (stalls) 566 
 
By providing 139 public stalls within the Memorial Parkade, the 139 stalls that will be lost 
with closure of the existing surface parking lot are fully replaced when construction is 
complete.  
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The schedule for the Memorial Parkade is for completion by the end of July 2016, coordinated 
with the completion of the IHA building.  The detail design for the Memorial Parkade project 
is complete and the City is scheduled to invite tenders on the project in May.  Construction 
will start in September and will take approximately 11 months. 
 
Financial/Budgetary Considerations: 
The estimated cost of a 566 stall Memorial Parkade, including contingencies, is $19,247,850.  
The current approved budget for the project is $15,830,350.  The difference of $3,417,500 to 
pay for the costs of the additional 128 stalls will be funded from the Downtown Parking 
Reserve. 
 
Internal Circulation 
Divisional Director, Communications & Information Services 
Divisional Director, Community Planning & Real Estate  
Divisional Director, Corporate & Protective Services  
Director, Financial Services 
Director, Real Estate  
Manager, Cultural Services 
Manager, Park & Building Projects 
Manager, Parking Services 
Manager, Strategic Land Development 
 
Considerations not applicable to this report: 
Existing Policy 
Legal/Statutory Procedural Requirements  
Personnel Implications 
Alternate Recommendation 
Legal/Statutory Authority: 
External Agency/Public Comments: 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
 
A. Newcombe  
Divisional Director, Infrastructure  
 
Approved for inclusion:                  
 _________ 
 R. Mattuissi  
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cc: Divisional Director, Communications & Information Services 
 Divisional Director, Community Planning & Real Estate  
 Divisional Director, Corporate & Protective Services  
 Director, Financial Services 
 Director, Real Estate  
 Manager, Cultural Services 
 Manager, Park & Building Projects 
 Manager, Parking Services 
 Manager, Strategic Land Development  
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M E M O R I A L PA R K A D E  
Parkade Name & Budget Update 

95



P U R P O S E  

Naming the parkade 
Background summary 
Update on financial status of project 
Budget Amendment 
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PA R K A D E  N A M E  

Currently referred to as ‘Ellis’ or ‘Memorial’ 
Existing lot is ‘Memorial Arena Lot’ 
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PA R K A D E  N A M E  

Currently referred to as ‘Ellis’ or ‘Memorial’ 
Existing lot is ‘Memorial Arena Lot’ 
Council Policy 343 Civic Community Facility 

Naming Policy 
Doesn’t include parkades 
But does provide 
guidance for naming 
(e.g. geographic, historic 
or cultural relevance)  
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PA R K A D E  N A M E  

Currently referred to as ‘Ellis’ or ‘Memorial’ 
Existing lot is ‘Memorial Arena Lot’ 
Council Policy 343 
Loan Bylaw 10742 
 

‘Memorial Parkade’ 
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PA R K A D E  N A M E  

Currently referred to as ‘Ellis’ or ‘Memorial’ 
Existing lot is ‘Memorial Arena Lot’ 
Council Policy 343 
Loan Bylaw 10742 
Consultation 
 

Kelowna Museums Society 
Cultural District staff 
Royal Canadian Legion 
Veterans Affairs 
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PA R K A D E  N A M E  

Recommendation 
 
Endorse “Memorial Parkade” as the formal 
name for the new parkade at 1424 Ellis St. 
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P R O J E C T  U P D AT E  

566 stalls proposed 
410 dedicated to IHA 
for workday use 
2 floors on Ellis for 
City office space 
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P R O J E C T  U P D AT E  

22.0m 

0.0m 

20.8m 568 stalls 
6.5 stories 

20.8m 
 

ELLIS 
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P R O J E C T  U P D AT E  

568 stalls 
6.5 stories 

20.8m 
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S C H E D U L E  

Meet IHA targets 
Minimize summer 2015 impact 
Minimize total construction time 
Accept winter construction 
 
 
 

S T R AT E G Y  
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P R O J E C T  B U D G E T  

MEMORIAL PARKADE 

$ 19,247,850 

$ 15,830,350 

($ 3,417,500) 

Updated cost estimate 

Current budget 

NET 
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P R O J E C T  B U D G E T  

Recommendation 
 
“Amend the 2015 Financial Plan for the 
Memorial Parkade project from $15,830,350 to 
$19,247,850, funded from the Downtown 
Parking Reserve”. 
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Q  &  A  
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CITY OF KELOWNA 
 
APPROVED ISSUANCE OF A: 
 

 
 

Development Permit No.:   DP14-0256  

 
EXISTING ZONING DESIGNATION: 
 
WITHIN DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AREA: 
 

  
P1 – Major Institutional 
 
Comprehensive Development Permit Design Guideline 

 

 
ISSUED TO:                         City of Kelowna 
 
LOCATION OF SUBJECT SITE: 1435 Water Street  

 

 LOT SECTION D.L. TOWNSHIP DISTRICT PLAN 

 
LEGAL 
DESCRIPTION: 

A  139  ODYD 5438 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCOPE OF APPROVAL 
 
This Permit applies to and only to those lands within the Municipality as described above, and any and all buildings, 
structures and other development thereon. 
 
This Permit is issued subject to compliance with all of the Bylaws of the Municipality applicable thereto, except as 
specifically varied or supplemented by this Permit, noted in the Terms and Conditions below. 
 
Applicants for Development and Development Variance Permit should be aware that the issuance of a Permit limits 
the applicant to be in strict compliance with regulations of the Zoning Bylaw or Subdivision Control Bylaw unless 
specific Variances have been authorized by the Permit.  No implied Variances from bylaw provisions shall be granted 
by virtue of drawing notations which are inconsistent with bylaw provisions and which may not have been identified 
as required Variances by the applicant or City staff. 
 

 

1. TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 

a) The dimensions and siting of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with   
Schedule “A”; 
 

b) The exterior design and finish of the building to be constructed on the land be in general accordance with 
Schedule "B";  
 

c) Landscaping to be provided on the land be in general accordance with Schedule “C”. 
 

 
2. PERFORMANCE SECURITY:  

 

None 
 
 

4. DEVELOPMENT: 
 
 The land described herein shall be developed strictly in accordance with the terms and conditions and 

provisions of this Permit and any plans and specifications attached to this Permit which shall form a part 
hereof. 

 
 If the Permittee does not commence the development Permitted by this Permit within one year of the date of 

this Permit, this Permit shall lapse. 
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 This Permit is not transferable unless specifically permitted by the Municipality.  The authorization to transfer 

the Permit shall, if deemed acceptable, be granted by Council resolution. 
 
 THIS Permit IS NOT A BUILDING Permit. 
 
5. APPLICANT'S AGREEMENT: 
 
 I hereby declare that all the above statements and the information contained in the material submitted in 

support of this Permit are to the best of my belief, true and correct in all respects.  Upon issuance of the 
Permit for me by the Municipality, then in such case, I covenant and agree to save harmless and effectually 
indemnify the Municipality against: 

 
 (a) All actions and proceedings, costs, damages, expenses, claims, and demands whatsoever and by 

whomsoever brought, by reason of the Municipality granting to me the said Permit. 
 
 (b) All costs, expenses, claims that may be incurred by the Municipality if the construction by me of 

engineering or other types of works as called for by the Permit results in damages to any property 
owned in whole or in part by the Municipality or which the Municipality by duty or custom is obliged, 
directly or indirectly in any way or to any degree, to construct, repair, or maintain. 

 
 I further covenant and agree that should I be granted a Development Permit or Development Variance Permit, 

the Municipality may withhold the granting of any occupancy Permit for the occupancy and/or use of any 
building or part thereof constructed upon the hereinbefore referred to land until all of the engineering works 
or other works called for by the Permit have been completed to the satisfaction of the Municipal Engineer and 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate. 

 
Should there be any change in ownership or legal description of the property, I undertake to notify the 
Community Planning & Real Estate Department immediately to avoid any unnecessary delay in processing the 
application. 

 
I HEREBY UNDERSTAND AND AGREE TO ALL THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS SPECIFIED IN THIS PERMIT. 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Signature of Owner/Authorized Agent 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Print Name in Bold Letters 
 

______________________________________________ 
Date 
 
 
 
______________________________________________ 
Telephone No. 
 

6.APPROVALS: 
 

ISSUED BY THE URBAN PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY OF KELOWNA THE ___ DAY OF ___________, 2015 BY THE 

DIVISIONAL DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY PLANNING & REAL ESTATE. 

 

 

 

__________________________________________________ 
Doug Gilchrist 
Divisional Director of Community Planning & Real Estate  
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CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 10931 
Z14-0004 – Glenwest Properties Ltd  

103 Clifton Road N, 145 Clifton Road, 185 Clifton Road N, and 
(E of) Upper Canyon Drive.   

 

 
A bylaw to amend the "City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000". 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 

1. THAT City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 be amended by changing the zoning 
classification: 
 
1. Part of the South West ¼ of Section 5 Township 23 ODYD Except Plans KAP83526, 

KAP88266, EPP9195, EPP24895 and EPP24897 located (E of) Upper Canyon Drive 
from the P3 –Parks and Open Space zone to the RU1H – Large Lot Housing (Hillside 
Area) zone and from the RU1H-Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone to the P3 – 
Parks & Open Space zone;  
 

2. Part of the North West ¼ of Section 5 Township 23 ODYD Except Plans 20895, 
KAP88266,   EPP24895 and EPP24897, located at 185 Clifton Rd. N. from the P3 –
Parks and Open Space zone to the RU1H – Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone 
and from the RU1H-Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone to the P3 – Parks & Open 
Space zone; 

 
3. Part of Lot A Section 6 Township 23 ODYD Plan KAP70041, located at 145 Clifton 

Rd. from the P3 –Parks and Open Space zone to the RU1H – Large Lot Housing 
(Hillside Area) zone and from the RU1H-Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone to 
the P3 – Parks & Open Space zone; and 

 
4. Part of The Fractional North East ¼ Section 6 Township 23 ODYD Except Plans 

25017, KAP82511 and EPP12985, located at 103 Clifton Rd N from the RR1 – Rural 
Residential 1 zone to the RU1H-Large Lot Housing (Hillside Area) zone. 
 
as per Map “B” attached to and forming part of this bylaw. 

 
2. This bylaw shall come into full force and effect and is binding on all persons as and 

from the date of adoption. 
 
 
Read a first time by the Municipal Council this 17th day of March 2014. 
 
 
Considered at a Public Hearing on the 1st day of April 2014. 
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Read a second and third time by the Municipal Council this 1st day of April 2014. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 
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CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11089 
 
 

Road Closure and Removal of Highway Dedication Bylaw 
(The proposed closure of a portion of Osprey Avenue adjacent to 561 

McKay Avenue and 2600 Richter Street) 
 

A bylaw pursuant to Section 40 of the Community Charter to authorize 
the City to permanently close and remove the highway dedication of a 
portion of Osprey Avenue adjacent to 561 McKay Avenue and 2600 
Richter Street  
 

 
NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, 
hereby enacts as follows: 
 
1. That portion of highway attached as Schedule “A” comprising 0.102 ha shown in bold 

black as closed road on the Reference Plan EPP50997 prepared by Runnalls Denby, is 
hereby stopped up and closed to traffic and the highway dedication removed. 

 
2. The Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Kelowna are hereby authorized to execute such 

conveyances, titles, survey plans, forms and other documents on behalf of the said 
City as may be necessary for the purposes aforesaid. 

 
Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this 
 
Approved Pursuant to Section 41(3) of the Community Charter this 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this 
 
 
 
 

 

Mayor 
 
 
 
 

 

City Clerk 
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Schedule “A” 
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CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11085 
 

Development Cost Charge Reserve Fund Expenditure Bylaw, 
2015 

 
 
WHEREAS, there is an unappropriated balance in the Development Cost Charge Reserve Fund 
established under Bylaw No. 7112, which has most recently been replaced by Bylaw No. 9095, 
of Eighteen Million, One Hundred and Forty Eight Thousand, Eight Hundred and Forty Three 
Dollars ($ 18,148,843.00) as at January 1st, 2015. 
 
AND WHEREAS, it is deemed desirable to expend a portion of the monies set aside under said 
Bylaw No. 7112, which has most recently been replaced by Bylaw No. 9095, for the purpose of 
utility, road and land improvement and additions; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. The sum of Eighteen Million, One Hundred and Forty Eight Thousand, Eight Hundred 

and Forty Three Dollars ($18,148,843.00) is hereby appropriated from the 
Development Cost Charge Reserve Fund to be expended in 2015 for the following 
purposes: 

 
  Land for Park Purposes $500,000.00   
  Road Construction $10,183,132.00 
  Water Mains, Pump Stations & Reservoir Construction     $1,026,110.00 
  Wastewater Trunks, Plant & Debt Repayment $6,439,601.00 
       
   $ 18,148,843.00 
 
2. The expenditure to be carried out by the monies hereby appropriated shall be more 

particularly specified and authorized by resolution of Council. 
 
3. Should any of the above remain unexpended after the expenditures hereby authorized 

have been made, the unexpended balance shall be returned to the credit of the 
Development Cost Charge Reserve Fund. 

 
4. This bylaw may be cited as the "Development Cost Charge Reserve Fund Expenditure 

Bylaw, 2015, No. 11085". 
 
Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this 4th day of May, 2015.  
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this   
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 

 
City Clerk 
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CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11087 
 

Tax Structure Bylaw, 2015 
 

 
WHEREAS the Letters Patent of the City of Kelowna provide that the municipality may be 
divided into two (2) or more taxation areas by bylaw adopted prior to the adoption of the 
Annual Budget Bylaw; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, 
enacts as follows: 
 
1. Taxation Area 1 
 
 All lands and improvement thereon classified for assessment purposes as “Farm”. 
 
2. Taxation Area 2 
 
 All lands and improvements thereon not included in Taxation Area 1. 
 
3. This bylaw shall be applicable for the 2015 taxation year. 
 
4. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Tax Structure Bylaw, 2015 No. 11087”. 
 
 
Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this  4th day of May, 2015. 
 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

155



CITY OF KELOWNA 
 

BYLAW NO. 11088 
 

Five Year Financial Plan 2015-2019 
 

 
 
The Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna, in open meeting assembled, enacts as follows: 
 
1. Schedule "A" attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw is hereby declared to be 

the Five Year Financial Plan of the City of Kelowna for the period January 1st, 2015 to 
and including December 31st, 2019. 

 
2. Schedule “B” attached hereto and forming part of this bylaw is hereby declared to be 

the Statement of Objectives and Policies in accordance with Section 165 (3.1) of the 
Community Charter. 

 
3. This bylaw may be cited for all purposes as the "Five Year Financial Plan Bylaw, 2015-

2019, No. 11088". 
 
Read a first, second and third time by the Municipal Council this 4th day of May, 2015. 
 
Adopted by the Municipal Council of the City of Kelowna this   
 
 
 
 
 

 
Mayor 

 
 
 
 

 
City Clerk 
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Schedule “B” 
Statement of Objectives and Policies 

 
In accordance with Section 165(3.1) of the Community Charter, municipalities are required to 
include in the Five Year Financial Plan, objectives and policies regarding each of the following: 

(a) For each of the funding sources described in Section 165(7) of the Community Charter, 
the proportion of total revenue that is proposed to come from that funding source; 

(b) The distribution of property value taxes among the property classes that may be 
subject to taxes; and 

(c) The use of permissive tax exemptions. 
 
 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020-2030

REVENUE

PROPERTY VALUE TAX 113,540,720     120,089,698 125,476,202 130,855,810 136,273,213 1,839,199,613 

LIBRARY REQUISITION 5,591,643        5,703,476        5,817,545        5,933,896        6,052,574        75,125,094 

PARCEL TAXES 3,473,943        2,942,772        2,674,415        2,396,607        2,090,899        19,727,972 

FEES AND CHARGES 102,907,923     106,013,278     108,283,875     110,039,824     111,864,587     1,391,133,827 

BORROWING PROCEEDS 59,288,530       5,215,000        4,965,000        2,383,230        10,724,537       12,469,983 

OTHER SOURCES 59,827,214       51,124,622       46,733,216       46,311,272       61,829,753       598,866,212 

344,629,973     291,088,846     293,950,253     297,920,639     328,835,563     3,936,522,701  

TRANSFERS BETWEEN FUNDS

RESERVE FUNDS 1,653,356        3,013,251        2,208,084        2,207,892        2,207,693        14,717,192 

DCC FUNDS 17,142,625       15,013,214       17,321,869       11,885,317       15,713,703       181,903,245 

SURPLUS/RESERVE ACCOUNTS 113,860,679     42,278,104       45,665,411       31,180,888       37,526,036       348,349,967 

132,656,660     60,304,569       65,195,364       45,274,097       55,447,432       544,970,404     

TOTAL REVENUE 477,286,633     351,393,415     359,145,617     343,194,736     384,282,995     4,481,493,105  

EXPENDITURES

MUNICIPAL DEBT

DEBT INTEREST 10,193,350       12,362,854       13,276,857       13,253,915       9,893,679        78,663,045       

DEBT PRINCIPAL 11,544,185       13,512,272       13,552,650       14,860,122       11,726,984       68,360,132       

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 212,795,590     80,488,880       84,445,232       57,083,534       96,307,474       883,730,607     

OTHER MUNICIPAL PURPOSES

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 25,747,596       26,256,230       26,961,066       27,668,829       28,392,010       366,427,885     

PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT & 

BUILDING SERVICES 22,737,066       21,149,333       21,763,831       22,548,852       23,270,002       302,653,793     

COMMUNITY SERVICES 73,820,565       75,694,195       77,894,577       80,437,789       82,960,881       1,103,006,885  

PROTECTIVE SERVICES 48,188,479       50,315,212       51,908,472       54,051,467       55,953,370       752,850,026     

UTILITIES 17,916,525       17,270,315       17,664,484       18,110,871       18,593,294       237,673,304     

AIRPORT 12,295,780       12,613,871       12,974,070       13,387,781       13,816,273       182,927,959     

435,239,136     309,663,162     320,441,239     301,403,160     340,913,967     3,976,293,636  

TRANSFERS BETWEEN FUNDS

RESERVE FUNDS 14,303,421 13,558,591       13,537,605       13,453,831       13,359,369       139,341,650     

DCC FUNDS -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

SURPLUS/RESERVE ACCOUNTS 27,744,076 28,171,662       25,166,773       28,337,745       30,009,659       365,857,819     

42,047,497 41,730,253 38,704,378 41,791,576 43,369,028 505,199,469 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 477,286,633 351,393,415 359,145,617 343,194,736 384,282,995 4,481,493,105 

Schedule "A"

Financial Plan 2015 - 2019
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Funding Sources 
Table 1 shows the proportion of total revenue proposed to be raised from each funding source 
in 2015.  Property taxes and fees and charges are two of the largest sources of revenue.  Both 
have advantages in that they are stable, relatively simple to administer and are generally 
understood by citizens.  The City of Kelowna also utilizes funds from reserves and surplus as 
another main source of financial support.  Reserve funds are closely managed to ensure and 
protect the current and future financial viability of the municipality. Other sources of revenue 
may be variable and fluctuate from year to year depending on the economic influences and 
capital programs undertaken by the City. 
 
Objectives 

 Investigate other potential funding sources and securing opportunities for additional 
revenues. 

 Begin to decrease the municipality’s reliance on property taxes and explore 
opportunities to increase the percent of total revenue received from user fees and 
charges and senior government grants.   

 Maintain a fees and charges structure whereby increases are applied on a regular basis 
in line with inflation, while ensuring that service levels remain competitive and 
affordable. 

 
Policies 

 Pursue non-property tax revenues whenever possible through applying for government 
grants and charging user fees at appropriate levels. 

 Perform regular reviews of revenue generating areas for appropriate application of rate 
increases.   
o Planning and Development Fees. 
o Recreation & Cultural Services – application of BC Consumer Price Index. 
o Utility Revenues – ensure Utilities operate as self supporting enterprise funds. 

 Increase provincial and federal grant revenue through maximum utilization of the City’s 
Grant Manager position. 

 
Table 1: Sources of Revenue  
 

Revenue Source Revenue $ (000’s) % of Revenue 

Property Value Tax 113,540 24% 

Library Requisition    5,592 1% 

Parcel Taxes    3,474 1% 

Fees & Charges 102,908 22% 

Borrowing Proceeds  59,289 12% 

Other Sources  59,827 12% 

Reserve Funds/Accounts 132,657 28% 

       Total 477,287 100% 

 
 
Distribution of Property Tax Rates 
 
Table 2 outlines the council approved municipal tax distribution policy for 2015 and the 
relative proportion of tax revenues.  Projected revenues from the combined residential, 
recreational and Non-Profit classes, provides the largest proportion of property tax revenue.  
This cumulative class represents the largest tax assessment base and hence utilizes the 
majority of City services. 
 
Objectives 

 Provide an effective tax change that is the same for all property classes. 
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 Ensure that business and light industry property tax ratios remain below the average of 
BC municipalities with populations greater than 75,000. 

 Allow for a maximum ratio cap of 3.00:1 for the Light Industrial/Business class.  
 
Policies 

 Council will annually review and modify tax class ratios to provide an effective tax 
change that is the same for all classes. 

 The impacts on other property classes from administering a ratio cap on the Light 
Industrial/Business classes will be reported to Council during the annual Tax 
Distribution Policy review. 

 Regularly review and compare the City’s relative position in terms of distribution of 
taxes to other similarly sized municipalities in British Columbia. 

 
Table 2: Tax Class Ratios and Projected Revenues 

Property 
Class 

Description 2015 Tax Class 
Ratios 

Tax Revenue 
(000’s) 

2014 Tax Class 
Ratios 

01/08/03 Res/Rec/NP/SH 1.0000:1 79,060 1.0000:1 

02 Utilities 5.1296:1 530 5.0301:1 

04 Major Industrial 3.4822:1 371 3.0908:1 

05/06 Light Ind/Bus/Other 2.1307:1 33,103 2.0881:1 

09 Farm Land 0.1244:1 10 0.1242:1 

91 Farm Improvements 0.4882:1 466 0.4953:1 

    Total Revenues  113,540  

 
 
 
 
Permissive Tax Exemptions  
  
The City has an existing permissive tax exemption policy which guides the administration and 
approval of permissive tax exemptions. Some of the eligibility criteria for permissive tax 
exemptions that are outlined in the policy include the following: 

 The applicant must qualify for an exemption under the provisions of the Community 
Charter. 

 The organization receiving an exemption must be a registered non-profit society or 
registered charity, as the support of the municipality will not be used for commercial 
and private gain. 

 The tax exemption must demonstrate benefit to the community and residents of the 
City by enhancing the quality of life (spiritually, educationally, socially and culturally), 
while delivering services economically to the citizens within the community. 

 
The value of tax exemptions provided by Council for 2015 (based on 2014 assessment totals and 
tax rates) is $1,886,904. The following breaks down the total into various exemption categories 
and the exemption value for the category: 
 
Places of Worship - $281,669 
Private schools - $149,801 
Hospitals - $ 115,548 
Special Needs Housing - $53,202 
Social Services - $180,331 
Public Park, Athletic or Recreational - $441,874 
Cultural - $263,357 
Partnering, Heritage or Other Special Exemptions Authority - $322,249 
Revitalization - $78,873 
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In order to encourage the restoration and preservation of commercial, industrial and 
institutional building, properties that meet the criteria outlined in the Heritage Building Tax 
Incentive Program policy can receive a tax exemption. 
 
The establishment of the Revitalization Tax Exemption policy allows qualifying properties 
within the Downtown Urban Centre and Rutland Urban Centre areas to receive a tax 
exemption. 
 
Objectives 

 Continue to provide permissive tax exemptions to support qualifying organizations that 
improve the well-being of the community. 

 The municipality will continue to provide heritage and revitalization tax exemptions for 
qualifying properties. 

 
Policies 

 Permissive tax exemptions will be considered to encourage activities that:  (a) are 
consistent with the quality of life objectives of the municipality; (b) provide direct 
access and benefit to the public; and (c) would otherwise be provided by the 
municipality. 

 To meet the city’s commitment to the ongoing restoration, preservation and 
maintenance of buildings and structures on its Heritage Register, eligible properties 
will be considered for a tax exemption. 

 To support the city’s revitalization program of the Downtown Urban Centre and Rutland 
Urban Centre, qualifying properties will be considered for a tax exemption. 
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